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Re: Columbia Management Group, Inc. and the other defendants listed on Exhibit A attached
hereto (the “Defendants”)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

On behalf of Columbia Management Group, Inc. and the other Defendants that are party -
defendants to the action described in the following complaint, please find enclosed a copy of the
following complaint filed pursuant to Section 33 of the Investment Company Act of 1940:

1. Lefler v. Hacker, Civil Action No. 05-10065 (PBS), United States District Court
for the District of Massachusetts (filed on January 11, 2005). The complaint is a
class action against Columbia Management Group, Inc. and certain of its affiliates
(collectively, “Columbia”) and certain members of the Board of Trustees/Directors
of the family of funds advised by Columbia, among others.

Please direct any questions or comments relating to the enclosed materials to the undersigned at
the above number or Brian D. McCabe, Esq. at (617) 951-7801.

Please acknowledge receipt of this letter and the materials being submitted for filing by stamping
the enclosed copy of this letter and returning it to the messenger.

Respectfully submitted,

VS S

Michael T. Cappucci

9637140_1



ROPES & GRAY LLP

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission -2 - January 26, 2005

Enclosures

cc:  Vincent Pietropaolo, Esq., Columbia Management (w/o encl.)
John M. Loder, Esq. (w/o encl.)
Brian D. McCabe, Esq. (w/o encl.)




Exhibit A

Columbia Management Group, Inc.
Columbia Management Advisors, Inc.
Columbia Wanger Asset Management, L.P.
Douglas A. Hacker

Janet Langford Kelly

Richard W. Lowry

Charles R. Nelson

John J. Neuhauser

Patrick J. Simpson

Thomas E. Stitzel

Thomas C. Theobald

Anne-Lee Verville

Richard L. Woolworth

Margaret Eisen

Leo A. Guthart

Jerome Kahn, Jr.

Steven N. Kaplan

David C. Kleinman

Allan B. Muchin

Robert E. Nason

John A. Wing

William E. Mayer

Charles P. McQuaid

Ralph Wanger




UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT. .
DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS

JACKIE LEFLER and FRED SALMQO, on
.Behalf of Themselves and All Others Slmllarly
Situated, )

Plaintiffs,
V.

"~ DOUGLAS A. HACKER, JANET LANGFORD
KELLY, RICHARD W.LOWRY, CHARLES R.
NELSON, JOHN I. NEUHAUSER, PATRICK
J. SIMPSON, THOMAS E. STITZEL,
THOMAS C. THEOBALD, ANNE-LEE
VERVILLE, RICHARD L. WOOLWORTH,
MARGARET EISER, LEO A. GUTIIART,
JEROME KAHN, JR., STEVEN N. KAPLAN,
DAVID C. KLEINMAN, ALLAN B. MUCHIN,
ROBERT E. NASON, JOHN A. WING,
WILLIAM E. MAYER, CHARLES P.
MCQUAID, RALPH WANGER, COLUMBIA
MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC., COLUMBIA
MANAGEMENT ADVISORS, INC,,
COVLUUMBIA WANGER ASSET SR
MANAGEMENT, LP, and JOHN DOES NO. 1
through 100,

" Defendants.
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INTRODUCTION

i
)
o

L This is a national class action lawsuit on behalf of investors in open-ended mutual
) . : ’z::i

funds with equity éecﬁrities hold‘ings in the’v C”olumbia Farﬁily of Funds (the “Funds™) against‘;?the
Defendant directors, investrnent advisors, and affiliates of the Funds alleging that the Defenda'hts
breached fiduciary duties and dutics of care owed directly to the Plaintiffs and members of the Class,
including duties arising under Sections 36(a), 36(b), and 47(b) of the Investment Company Act of
1940 (ICA), 15 U.S.C. § 80a et seq., by failing to ensure that the Funds participated in securé‘%ies
classaction settlements for which’ the Funds were eligible. Plaintiffs file on their own behalf, as well
as reprcsentatiyes of a Class of aII persons who owncd. Funds at any tirhe during the time pedoﬁ of

N
Tees

January 10, 2002 to the present. - Plaintiffs seek ‘compensa‘tory damages, disgorgement of the

i
i
b

paid to the investment advisors, and punitive damages.

2. . Over 90 million Americans entrust their savings to the dircctors and advisors of
7 A
i

mutual funds: jMutua]. funds are so attractive and poﬁular because they purport to provide
profeésional money mahagement serviées ‘to 'mvestors‘wh-o otherwise would not be able to af%ord
such services. Rather than select and monitor the securities that make up her portfolio, an invéjstor
pools her money with other inﬁestors ina mﬁtua] fund and entrusts complete control and domiéion
err herinvestments to the directors and advisors of the mutual fund. Asaresult ofthis relatio@j%hip
of special trust, directors and advisors of mutual funds owe a ﬁduciary duty directly to each
individual investor in the fund and are required to act wi‘;Lh the highest obligations of good falth,
loyalty, fair dealing, due care, and candor. E

3. “A mutual fund is a ‘mere shell,” a pool of assets consisting mostly of portfolio

securities that belong to the individual investors holding shares in the fund.” Tannenbaum v. Zéller,

552 F.2d4 402, 405 (2d Cir. 1977). Each investor who poois his money with others in a mutual fund

H
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owns a proportionate share of the total assets of the mutual fund. The value of each mvesto?’s

portion of those pooled assets is determined by taking the market value of all of the fund’s ponfoiﬁlio

securities, addlng the va}ue of any other fund assets, subtractmg fund liabilities, and d1v1d1ng the
result by the number of shares outstandmg Umted States v. Cartwright, 411 U S, 546, 548 (1973)
This so-called ‘fper share net asset value” (NAV) is computed daily so that any gain or loss in fund
assets is immodiafely allocated to the individual investors as of that specific date. Accord'mély,
mutual funds are unlike conventional _corpofations in that any increas¢ or decrease in fund assetsf is

immediotely passed on or allocated to the fund investors as of the date of the relevant recalculation

of the NAV. o -

i
i

4. Inthe mid to late 1990s, the number of investor securities class action lawsuits agaihst

publicly traded compames a]legmg violations of the Securities Act of 1933 and the Secunhes

Exchange Act of 1934 (collectively the “Securities Acts”) exploded.! In the fall of 2001, su1ts
brought pursuant to the Secuntxes Acts became magnified by the popular press after the corporate
scandals and misdoeds at Enron, WorldCom, Tyco, and Adelphia. When a recovery is achievet; in
asecurities class action lawsult investors who owned shares in the company settling the lawsuit hove
the option to either: (1) opt-out of the class actlon and pursue their own remedy or (2) remain m the
class and participate in the recovcry achieved. The process by which a member of the class collécts
the moncy to which he is entltled is intentionally quite mmple in order to encourage parncxpat;on
A class member cornpletes a short form called a Proof of Claim and submits it to the C]auns
Administrator. Afterthe Claims Adm1n1strator receivesall Proof of Claim forms, it disperses mooey

- . il
from the settlement fund to those persons and entities with valid claims. j

: There were 1,517 federal class actien lawsuits brought under the Securities Acts between 1996 and

2003. Securities Class Action Case Filings. 2003: A Yearin Review. Cornerstone Research. 1;
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5, Defendants serve in various capacities as mutual fund directors, advisors, f‘z:md

affiliates as will be identified herein. The Funds were putative members of dozens of class actions

bronght under the Securities Acts, by virtue of Funds owning the securities against which the snits

were brought. | However, upon information iand belief that the allegations art: likely to tfxave

: . i
evidentiary support and upon the representation that they will be withdrawn or conecteitjl if
reasonable opportunity for further investigaﬁon or discovery indicates insufficient evidentiary
support (hereatter “npon‘ information ‘and. belief”), Defendants failed tn ensure that the‘Fttnds
participated in‘(or opted out of) many of tltesa class action se‘ttlcmcnts.‘ As a result, bccaus% of
Defendants’ refusal to complete and submit a shott form, monies contained in dozens of Settlenitjent
Funds, which rightfully belonged to the Funds’ investors have gone unclaimed. Defendants’ faijljure‘
to protect thte irtterests of Fund investors by recovering monies owed them is a breach of the ﬁducjijary
duty they each oweidirectly to Plaintiffs and members of the Class.

6. The class period begms January 10, 2002. On or before that date, the Defendants
began thc illegal conduct complamed of herein. The C]ass consists of all persons who owned one
of the Funds at any time between January 10 2002 through January 10, 2005 and who suffcred
damages thereby.? A

| JURISDICTION AND VENUE | |

7. ~ This court has _]unsdlctlon over the subject matter of this action pursuant to Sectxon

36(b) and 44 of the Investment Company Act, 15 U.S. C § 30a-35(b) & -43, and 28 U.S. C. §

1331(a). This Court has supplemental jurisdiction, pursua_nt to 28:U.8.C. § 1367(a), over the $tatc

|
. 4
Because the full extent of Defendants’ breaches of fiduciary duty have yet to be revealed or have
subsequently stopped, the Class Period will be expanded forward to include the period of time between January 10
2005 and the date of the cessation of the unlawtul activities detailed herein. |

2
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law claims asserted heréin because théy arise out of a common nucleus of operative facts and are;iaart
of the same case or controversy as plaintiffs’ federal claims. |

8. Venue is‘ proper in this District because the acts and omissions complained of héirein

_ occurred in this DisfriQt and Parent Company Defendant; was, at all relevant times, and stll} is,

i

headquartered in Boston, Massachusetts. !

9. In conm;.ction with the acts and practices alleged herein, Defendants directl\gr or
indirectly used the instrumentalities of interstate commerce, including the mail systems, interéjtate
telephone communications, and the facilities and instrumentalities of the national securities markcts
and national securities exchanges. |

PARTIES
Plaintiffs. : ‘

10. Plaintiff Jackie Lefler resides in Pickens County, South Carolina and at all rc]eﬁzant
times owned one of the Funds.

11, Plaintiff Fred Salmo resides ih Williamson County, Illinois and at all relevant times
owned one of the Funds.

Defendants.

12. Defendant Columbia Managément Group, Inc. is the ultimate parent of Colurﬁbid
Management Advis;nrs, Inc. and Columbi:a Wanger Asset Management, LP. Throughits subsidi%ries
and divisions, Columbia Management Group, Inc. markets, SpOnsors, and provides investrﬁent
advisory, distribution and administrative services to the Columbia Family of Funds, which conswts
of approximately 89 funds. Columbia Management Group, Inc. shall be referred to herein as the
“Parent Company Defendant.”” Columbia Management Group, Inc. maintains its principal exec;;tivc

offices at 100 Federal Street, Boston, Massachusetts, 021 :10.
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13. Douglas A. Hacker, Janet Langford Kelly, Richard W. Lowry, Charles R. Nelgon,

JohnJ. Neuhauser, Patrick J. Sinipson, Thomas E. Stitzel, T'homas C. Theobald, Anne-Lee Ven} lle,

Richard L. Woolworth, Matgaret Eisen, Leo A. Guthart, Jerome Kahn, Jr., Steven N. Kaplan, D%vid

C. Kletnman, Allan B. Muchin, Robert E. Nason, John A. Wing, William E. Mayer, Charleii‘s P.

McQuaid, and Ralph Wanger are each members of the Boatd of Directors for the Funds. The Fuﬁds‘

Board of Directors oversee the management of the Funds. Collectively, these defendants shaij be

|
il
iy
il
3
B
o

referred 1o as the “Director Delendants,”

14, A.Defendant Columbia Management Advisors, Inc. is a registered investment ad\fj:isor
and has the responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Columbia Family of Fug}ds.

Columbia Management Advisors, Inc. has approximately $51 billion in assets under‘managenﬁent
in total. Columbia Management Advisors, Inc. is located at 1 East Avenue, Rochester, New York,

4]
i

l4g0s. : | |
B. Defeﬁdant .Columbia‘Wa.nger Asset Management, LP is a registered investr%ent
advisor and has the respbnsibility for the day-Lu-day management of the Columbia Family of Fu?xds.
Columbia Wanger Asset Management, LP is located at 227 West Monroe Street, Suite 3600,
Chicago, Tllinois, 60606. Collectively, Columbia Managcment Advisors, Inc. and Columbia Waﬁger
Asset Management, LP shal.l be referred 'to as the “Advisor Defendants.” |
15. The tl;ue names and capacities of Defendants sued herein as John Does 1 through :1 00
are often active participants with the above-pamed Défendants in the widespread unlawful con&uct
alleged herein whose identities have yet to Be'ascertained. Such Defendants served as ﬁduci&rics
on behalf of fund investors. vPlai‘ntiffs_ w_ill_séék to amend this complaint tovstate the true names‘jand
capacities of said Defendants when they ha{e been ascertained. ‘

16. - Collectively,all Defendants named above shall be referred to herein as “Defendaﬁts.”
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| CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

17. This action is brought By Plaintiffs‘as aclass action, on their own behalfand on be}Ialf
of all others sihilarly situated, under the provisions of Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of C:ivil
Procedure for c_ompensatdry and puhitive dafnages, forfeiture of all commissions and fees paié by
the Class, costs, aﬁd .attqmeyé fees. "Plaintif‘fs seek certification éf this acfion as aclass acnon: on
behalf of all persons owning one of the Funds at any time between Janﬁary 10,2002 and J anuar;%jl 0,
20053, vand who were damaged by the conduct alleged herein. This case is properly broughtas a ciass
action under Rule 23 of the F cderal Rﬁl#s of Civil Procedure for the reasons set forth in the
following para_graphs. ‘

18. The mefnbérs of the Class are so num:erous that joinder of all member%i is
impracticable. While the exact number of the Class members is unknown to Plaintiffs at this time
and can only be ascertained through appropriate discovery, Plaintiffs believe that there are tentg of
thousands of members m the proposed Class. Record owners of the Funds during the relevant tlme
period may be identified from records maintained by the Defendants and may be notified of}ithe
pendency of this actién by mail, using a form of notice sim{ilar to that customarily used in securijties
class actions. | ‘

19. Plaintiffs’ cllaims‘ are typical of the claims of the members of the C]‘ass asall members
of tﬁc C]ass arc similarly 5ffccted by Defendants’ wrongful conduct that is complained of her;in.

- 20. Common questions of law :‘and fact c);ist as to all members of the Class and

predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class. Among{the

questions of law and fact common to the Class are: :

(a) Whether Defendants owe the investors in the fund a fiduciary duty to submit Proof

of Claim forms on behalf of the Funds in settled securities cases; ‘
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(b) Whether Defendants owe the investors in the fund a duty of care to act in a
reasonable manner to profect and maximize Fund investors’ investments by
, panicipatixlngvin settied securities class actions; 1
(©) In which securities class action settlements the Funds were eligible to panicipaclite;
(d) Whether Defcn&nts submitted Proof of Cléim forms (or optéd outof theclass ac{%ion
and pursued their own remedy) for those securities class action settlements in wf;ich
Funds were eligible to partiéipaté; : | ‘
(e) To what, extent the member of the Class have sustained damages and the préper
measure of such damages. !
21. The claims of the Plaintiffs, who are representatives of the Class herein, are typical
of the claims of the Class in that the claims:of all members of the Class, including the P]amtiffs,
depend on a showing of the acts or omissions of the Defendants giving rise to the right of‘”the
Plaintiffs to the relief sdught herein. There is no conflict between any individual named Plaimiff and
other members of the Class with respect‘to‘ this action, or with respect to the claims for relie% set
forth herein. R .
22, The named Plaintiffs are the representati\fe parties for the Class and are able to;nd
will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Class. The ‘_attpm'eys for the Plaintiff;;are
experienced and capable in civil litigation and class actions. ;
23, | A class gction is superior to all other avgi]able methods for the fair and efﬁc;ient
adjudication of this cbntroversy since joinder of all mernbgrs is impracticable, Furthermaore, aéithe

damages suffered by individual Class members may be relatively small, the expense and burdefm of

individual litigation make it virtually impossible for members of the Class to individually redress

00003927.WPD ; ] , ' 8




the wrongs done to them. There will be no difficulty in the management of this action as a c:filass

action. A class action will redress the Defendants’ wrongful conduct described herein.

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

24, At all relevant times during the Class Period, the Columbia Family of Funds }im]d
assets of approximately $51 billion. Approximately 55 of the 89 Funds have the stated invesuf;ent
objecrive of ownivng equity sécuﬁ'ties, varying among. the funds as to the preferred mafket
capitalization and market sector of the ;ompénics owned.” As such, throughout the Class Pcn'od; the
Columbia Funds held billions of dollars of investments in equity security traded on the Ungtcd
States’ stock exchanges. | ‘

25. During the Class Period, hundreds of securities class action cases were settlcd%f(the

“Securities Class Actions™). Of the Securities Class Actions, the Funds were eligible to partici‘j;f)ate
\

in the recovery in a significant number of the cases by virtue of their ownership of the secux’jties

| | |

during the requisite time period of each case. While not an exhaustive list, upon information and
i

belief, the Funds owncd shares and had valid claims in many, if not all, of the following sccufitics
: 1

|

class action cases: ‘

Case Style o : Class Period Deadline to
‘ . Submit Proof

of Claim;

In re Accelr Technologj Corp Securities Litigation . 107797 - 11/16/99 6/16/2003
In re Acrodyne Communications, In¢; -~ - 1 . 1/1/98-.8/14/00 8/24/2001
Lewis v. Advanced Technical Products, Inc. et al. 4/22/98 - 4/28/00 2/1/2003,:'}
In re Allaire Corporation Securities Litigation 12/7/99 - 9/18/00 12/1 8/200:3
In re Anicom, Inc. Securities Litigation ‘ 2/17/99 - 7/18/00 1/24/2003
In re Applied Digital Solutions Litigation 1/1%/00 - 5/21/02 3/ 15/200%
In re ATI Technologies, Inc. Securities Litigation , 1/13/00 - 5/24/00 5/‘26/2005{?i
Bryant v. Avado Brands, Inc,, et al. (Applesouth) 5/26/95 - 9/24/96 3/5/2003\5
In re Avant! Corporation Securities Litigation - 6/6/95 - 12/6/95 711972001

00003927.WPD - 1 : 9




8/13/2001,

In re Bergen Brunswig Corp. Securities Litigation 316199 - 10/14/99
In re Brightpoint, Inc. Secﬁrities Liﬁgation 1/29/99 -.1/31/02 8/29/2003?
Sinay v. Boron LePore & Associates, Inc. et al, 5/5/98 - 2/4/99 7/ 17/2002:?1
In re California Sofiware Corporation Securitie-s Litigation 2/9/00 - 8/6/00 3/26/200%
In re Campbell Soup Co. Securities Litigation - 9/8/97 - 1/8/99 7/ 10/200%,
Katz v. Camival Corporation et al. 7/28/98 - 2128/00 2672004,
In r¢ CHS Elecuunics, Ine. Securities Litigation 8/7/97 - 5/13/9% 3/31/2002?%
Debaorah Andenon v. ClearOne Commuinications, Ihc. ctal. , 4/17/01 - 1/15/03 4/8/2004;3
Sherma v, Cole National Corporation, et al. 1/31/98 - 5/16/03 10/28/200.}
In re Commtouch Software LTD. Securities Litigation 4/19/00 - 2/13/01 9/3/2003,;
In re Conseco, Inc. Securities Litigation 4/2¥199 - 4/14/00 11/30/200'21
In re Covad Communications Group Securities Litigation 4/19/00 - 6/24/01 2/4/2003‘
In re Cutter & Buck Inc. Securities Litigation | 6/1/00 - 8/12/02 1/12/2004
Graf v. CyberCare Inc. et al, , 1/4199 - 5/12/00 1/24/2003
Maley v. DelGlobal Technologies Corporationvet al, 11/6/97 - 11/6/00 1/2/2002:
In re Dollar General Corporation Sécurities Litigation 3/5/97 - ]/l4/02 7/8/20021;
In re DOV Pharmaceutical, Inc. Securities Litigation 4/25/02 - 12/20/02 6/ 16/2003;
In re DPL, Inc. Securities Litigation ‘ 11/15/98 - 8/14/02 3/1/2004.
In re DrKoop.Com, Inc. Securities Litigation 6/8/99 - 12/7/02 1/ 14/20025
In re ECI Telecom LTD Securities Litigation 5/12/00 -.2/14/01 1/ 14/2003?
Inre eCormeét, Inc. Securities Litigatidn 11/18/99 - 3/13/00 10/12/2001
In re Mex. Corporation Securities Litigation 4/9/01 - 5/23/01 1/16/2004
In re Emulex Corporation Securities Litigation 1/18/01 - 2/9/01 10/27)2003
In re Engineering Axiiman'on Securities Litigation 2/19/98 - 10/1/99 6/1/200!".
In re Envoy Corporation Securities Litigation 211297 - 8/18/98 212012004
In re Federal-Mogul Corp. Securities T.itigation 10/22/9% - 5/25/00 1/9/2004;’
In re Fidelity Holdings, Inc. Securities Litigation 6124/99 - 4/17/00 4/21/2003
In rc Finova Group Inc. Sccuritics Litigation 11499 11/13/02 9/30/2002??
In re Flir Systems, Inc. Securities Liﬁgation 3/3/99 - 3/6/00 5/3/2001
In re FPA Medical Management, Inc. Seourities Litigation 173/97 - 5/14/98 1 1/25/2003
‘ 4/14/00 - 2/28/01 9/30/2002;

In re Gateway, Inc. Securities Litigation
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In re Gliatech Inc. Securities Litigation 4/9/98 - 8/29/00 5/3/2003
Pirelli Armstrong et al. v. Hanover Compressor Co., etal 5/4/99 - 12/23/02 3/1?./2004’;1
Warstad! et al, v. Hastings Entenainmem, Inc., etal. 6/12/98 - 5/2/00 4r‘24/2003':?
White v. Heartland High-Yield Municipal Bond Fund, et al. | Y97 - 10/16/00 11/18/2002
In re HI/FN, Inc, Securities Litigation 7/26/99 - 11/7/99 9/20/2003%%‘
In re Homestore.com, Inc. Securities Litigation 1/1/06 - 12/21/01 12/5/2003‘}
In re IBP, Inc. Sccuritics‘Litigaﬁon 2/7/00 - 1/25/01 10/31/2005
Fogel v. Information Management Associates, Inc., ef,al. 8/12/99 - 11/18/99' 1/17/2003.3'
In re InaCom Corp. Securities Liiigatiun 11/9/98 - 5/17/00 2/12/‘2003’,%
Inre fndependem Energy Holdings PLC 2/14/00 - 9/8/00 12/3/2002;
[n re InterSpeed, Inc. Secﬁrities Litigation 9/24/99 - 10/6/00 & 10/2001.}1
In re IXL Enterprises, Jac. Securities Litigation {11309 -9n172000 | 81202003
Garza v. JD Edwards & Company et al. 1/22/98 - 12/3/98 5/6/2002.
In re JDN Realty Corporation Securities Litigation 2/15/97 - 4/12/00 12/15/2001
Harold Ruttenberg, et al. (Just for Feet, Inc.) 4/12/99 - 11/3/99 117132002
In re L90, Inc. Securities Litigation 4/28/00 - 5/5/03 5/18/2004°
[n re Landry’s Seafood Restaurants, Inc. Sec. Litigation 12/19/97 - 9/18/98 7/19/20021
In re Legato Systems, Inc. Securities Litigation 4/22/99 - 5/17/00 9/30/2002
Molholt v. Loudcloud Inc., et al. 3/8/01 -.5/1/01 10/29/2005
In re Lucent Technologies Inc. Securities Litigation 10/26/99 - 12/21/00 3/3112004
In re M&A West, Inc. Securi‘ties Litigatidn 10/4/99 - 12/28/00 3/4/2004in
Dusek v. Mattel, Inc., et al. » 2/2/99 - 10/1/99 10/23/2003
Haack v. Max Internet Communicéticins, Inc., etal. 11/12/99 - 5/12/00 11/25/200£
In re Medi-Hut Co., Securities Litigation 11/7/99 - 8/19/03 7/2/2004‘
In re Medirisk, Inc. Securities Litigation 5/4/98 - 6/30/98 4/30/2004?1
Tn re MicraStrategy Inc. Securities Litigation 6/11/98 - 3/20/00 932001
In re Mitek Systems, Inc. Securities Litigation 12/27/99 - /29/00 4/8/2002}3;13;
I re MP3.Com, Inc. Securities Litigation 1/13/00 - 9/7/00 8/9#2001?@?
In re Mpower Communications Corp. Securities Litigation 2/4/00 - 9/7/00 8/29/2003:%
In re MSC Industrial Direct Co., Sccuritics Litigation 1/11/99 -.8/5/02 4/30/2004:1

7/22/99 - 7/2/00 9/2/2003:'}3[

In re MTI Technology Corp. Securities Litigation, i
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In re Navigant Consulting, Inc. S'ecuriﬂes Litigation 1/1/89 - 11/19/99 3/22/2001:533
In re NetEase.Com, Inc. Securities Litigation 23100 - $/31/01 61372003
In re Netsolve Incamporated Securities Litigation 4/18/00 - 8/18/00 9/ 13/200213‘3
In re Network Associates Inc. Securities Litigation - 1/20/98 - 4/6/99 6/1 4/2002’::
In re Network Associates, Inc. 11 Securities Litigation 4/15/99 - 1212600 320004
New Era of Networks, I ’ 10/29098 - /699 | 12/31/2001
Norman v, New Era Of Networks, Inc., ¢t al. 10/18/006 - 1/5/01 8/12/2002
In re Newpower Holdings, Inc. Securities Litigation 10/5/00 - 12/5/0] 41712004 ::‘
In re Nice Systems, Ltd. Sécu.rities Litigation 11/3/99 - 2/7/01 5/1/2003 ’ 
In re Nike, Inc. Securities Litigation 6/29/00 - 2/26/01 3/10/2003
Stuart Markus, et al v. The Northface, Inc. 4/24/77 - 411199 512412001
In re Northpoint Communications Group, Inc. Sec, Litigation 8/8/00-11/259/00 2/1 1/2004?
In re Nuance Communications, Inc. 1/31/01 - 3/15/01 12/15/2003
In re On-Point Technology Systems, Inc. Securities Litigation 5/19/97 - 4/7/00 8/21/2001‘3‘33
In re Onyx Software Corporation Securities Litigation Pursuant to 272001 6/28/2004::%

' : Offering
In re Optical Cable Corporation Securities Litigation 6/14/00 - 9/26/01 1 1/1/200211}
In re Oxford Health Plans, Inc. Securities Litigation 11696 - 120997 | 7112003
In re Paradyne Networks, Inc.:Securities Litigation 3/20/00 - 9/28/00 7/_12/2004?;%
In re Party City Corporation Securities Litigaﬁon . 2/26/98 - 3/18/99 8/ 12/2003?;%
In re P-COM, Inc. Securities Litigation ©4/15/97 - 9711798 3/ 15/20021’?
In re Penn Treaty Schwab Corporation Sec. Litig, 7/23/00 - 3/29/01 2/23/20041@
In re PeopleSoft, Inc. Securities Litigation 5/27/98 - 1/28/99 ' 9/4/2001;?%
In re Performance Techhologies, Inc: Securities Litigation 2/2/00 - 5/19/00 7/18/2003;;;
In re PhyCor Corporation Securities Litigation 4/22/97 - 9/22/98 8/5/2002%@
In re Pilot Network ‘Seryi;:es, Inc. Securities Litigation 8/11/98 - 10/17/00 5/2/2002‘;@
In re PSS World Medical, Inc. Securities Litigation 10/26/99 - 10/3/00 57142004
In re Reliance Seowrities Litigation 31495 114197 | 372372002
In re Rent-Way Securities Litigation 12/10/98 - 10/27/00 11/23/200$
In re Rite Aid Corporation Securities Litigation 5/2/97 - 11/10/99 6/30:’200:;?
In re Robotic Vision Systems, Inc. Securities Litigation 1/27/00 - 5/15/01 81 l/2005§i
Paul Ruble v. Rural /Metro Corporation et al. 4/24/97 - 6/11/98

12/15/2003
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Stanley v. Safeskin Corporation, et al,

2/1898 - 3/1199

4/28/2003

In re Sagent Technology Inc. Sectrities Litigation 10/21/99 - 4/18/00 51272003
In rc SCB Computer Technology, Inc. Securities Litigation 11/19/97 - 4/14/00 32072002
Lone Star et al. v. Schlotzsky’s Inc., et al. 92411997 5/23/2002
In re Select Comfort Corporation Securities Litigation 12/3/98 - 6/7/99 4/30/2003
In re Sensormatic Electronics Corp: Securities Litigation '8/8/00 - 4/26/01 1 1/14/2003
Steinbeck v. Sonic lnnovations, In¢. et al: 5/2/60 - 10/24/00 6/21/2004
Klein v. Southwest Gas Corporation, et al, 12/14/98 - 1/21/00 11/5/2001
In re Starnet Communications Int’l, Inc. Sec. Litigation 3/11/99 - 812079 Y120/2002
In re Steven Madden Ltd. Securities Litigation 6/21/97 - 6/20/00 6/ 18/2004{
In re Supervalu, Inc. Securities Litigation 7/19/99 - 1/125/02 8/2/2004‘:"‘
In re Sykes Enterprises, Inc. Securities Litigation 7/27/98 - 6/18/00 4/9/2003;
In re Synsorb BioTech, Inc. Securities Litigation 4/4/01 - 12/10/01 1/10/2004
In re Take Two Interactive Software, Inc. Securities Litigation 2/24/00 - 12/17/01 1/2/2003\
In re Team Communications Group, Inc. Securities Litigation 11/19/99 - 3/16/01 8/2212002
In re Telxon Corporation Securities Litigation 5121196 - 2/23/99 6/11/2004
Spiegel v. Tenfold Corporaticn, et al. 5/21/99 - 4/12/01 1/9/2003:
In re THG, Inc. Securities Litigation. 10/26/99 - 5/24/00 6/30/2603
In re Turnstone Systems, Inc. Securities Litigation - Pursuant to 9/2/G0 10/31/2003
Inre Tut Systems, Inc. Securities Litigation 7/20/00 - 1/31/01 6/21/20M
In re UniStar Financial Service Corp. Securities Litigation 10/15/98 - 7/20/99 8/ 17/2001‘1“
In re US Franchise Systems, Inc. Securities Litigation 516199 - 10/29/99 6/5/20032?;
In re US Interactive, Inc. Sccurities Litigation 2/10/00 - 11/8/00 121272003
O"Neal Trust v. VanStar Corporation, et al. 3/11/96 - 3/14/97 i mmmoﬁ
Rasner v. Vari-L Company, Inc. et al 12/17/97 - 716/00 5/5/2003?
Helwig v. Vencor, inc. ctal. 2/10/97 - 10/21/97 6/1 4/2005
Inre Versata, Inc. Securities Liﬁgatibn . 3/2/00 - 4/30/01 3/ 17/200%
Inre Vesta Insurance Group, Inc. Securides Litigation 6/2/95 - 6/28/98 10/17/20&2
In re Vision America, Inc. Securities Litigation 11/5/98 - 3/24/00 7/301’200;;1
In re Vision America, Inc. Securities Litigation 4/24/99 - 3/24/00 10/8/200;
In re The Warnaco Group‘, Inc. Securities Litigaﬁon 9/17/97 - 7/19/00 |
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“cases and all others to w?bi‘ch the Funds had valid claims, the'settlemcnt funds would have increji’iscd

In re Waste Management Inc. Securities Litigation 6/11/99 - 11/9/99 K 15/‘2002'

In re Westell Technologies, Inc. Securities Litigation . 6/27/00 - 11/18/00 873 1/20033
In re Ziff Davis [nc. Securities Litigation | ‘ 4/29/98 - 11/8/98 4/5/2002
26. ~ Ifthe Defendants had submitted Proof of Claim forms on behalf of the Funds in these

i

the total assets held By the Funds, and such increase Would have been allocated immediately to the

then-current investors ﬁpon the recalculation of the Net Asset Value (NAV).

27. However, upon ih_forrnation‘and belief, the Defendants failed to submit Proof of

Claim forms in these cases and thereby forfeited Plaintiffs’ rightful share of the recovery obtaﬁi?ned

in the securities class actions. |

28. By vinug of their position as investment advisors to the Funds with complete coijtrol
of Plaintiffs’ investments, the Investment Advisor Defendants (and any sub-advisors and afﬁliétes)
directly owed P]aintiffs‘ and other fund investors a fiduciary duty to act in their best interests. ‘;‘;See
Lydia E. Pinkham Mediciné Co. v. Gove, 2‘0 N.E.2d 482 (Mass. 1939). Likewise, the indiviytjiual
defendants, as well as Directors of mutual funds, owe a fiduciary duty to fund shareholders. Se:eja zd.

29. Plaintiffs entrusted Defendants to fulfill their fiduciary duties and not knowi‘ng:l‘y to
refuse to recover money rightfully belongmg to the Fund investors at the time of settlement
disbursement. As the F und investors’ hdumary, only Defendants were able to submit the necessary
Proofof Claim forms to recover the share of the settlements allocated to the Fund and Fund inve$tors
in the securities class action suits. Plaintiffs did not receive notice of the proposed scttlcmentéj nor
did they have the option of submitting a Proof of Claim form in their individual capaciti%s as
individual investors. Plamtlffs and members of the Class trusted Defendants to carry out this sﬁﬁp]e

task on their behalf, and on information and belief, Defendants failed to do so. By failing to submlt
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Proof of Claim fonns,‘Defendanfs breached fhe fiduciary duty and standard of care that they owed
directly to Plaintiffs and members of the Class.
Standing. |
30. The Funds were éII created and sponsored by the Parent Company Defendant. The
day-to-day operatlons of the Funds are managed by the same Investment Advisor or a sub- advxsor
who rcports to'the Advxsor The Fu.nds have the same dxrectors who meet for all the funds at once
All of the contracts tor all of’ the Funds are 1dentxcal for the purposes of this action. The Funds snare
many expenses between and among one another. The same policy or custom related to partxcnpanon

in securities class action settlements applies:to all the Funds. Plaintiffs therefore bring this acfion

on behalf of all the Funds.
COUNTI1I
BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY
31.  Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege cach of the preceding allegations as though full)%'ij sct

forth herein.

32, Allof the Defendants owed fiduciary duties directly to Plaintiffs and members of-the
Class and were required to act with the highest obhgatlons of good faith, loyalty, fair dealing, due

i

care, and candor.” - “ | o o v . : &
33. As set forth above, o'n information and belief, the Defendants breached the ﬁduc%ary
duties they owed directl)% 'so Plainti‘ffs and members of the Cléss by failing tn submit Proof of C]Egl'm
forms or to otherwise bar_n’cipate in séttlcd sgcurities class actions and thereby recover mujiv:y
rightfully belonging to the Fund investors. Plaintiffs and members of the class have been injurea as

a direct, proximate, and foreseeable result of such breach on the part of the Defendants and have

suffered substantial damages.
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34. Because the Defendants breached theirﬁduciary duties owed directly to Plaintiffs z‘md
merﬁbem of the Class',: Plaintiffs are éntitled to compensatory damages, and Defendants must fo;‘feit
all fees and commission they reCcivcd from ?laimiffs and members of the Class. See Gove, méra
& Shulkinv. Shulkin, 16 N .E.2d644 (Mass: 1938). Maésachusetts coufts have ordered the forfeiﬁne
of such fees in breach of fiduciary duty casesz, See Raymond v. Davies, 199 N.E. 321 (Mass. 15;36)
& Little v. Phipps, 94 N.E. 260 (Mass. 1911) |

35. Because the‘ Defendants acted with reckless and:willful disregard for the nghts of
Plaintiffs and members of the Class, the Defendants are liable for punitive damages in an a.mqjunt

to be determined by the jury.

- COUNTII
NEGLIGENCE AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS
3. Plaintiffs repeat and r,e-éllege each of the preceding allegations as though fully set
forth herein. | | |
37. Defendants owed a duty of cé;e directly to Plaintiffs and members of the Class to‘ act

in a reasonable manner and to protect and maximize each individual’s investments in the Funds By

failing to submit Proof of Claim forms or to otherwise participate in settled securities class actijibns,

on information and belief, Defendants did not conform to the duty they owed. Asa dkectlﬁ}md
‘ ’ |

proximate result, Plaintiffs and members of the Class have been damaged by millions of dollé?s.
|

COUNT III
VIOLATION OF SECTION 36(a) OF THE INVESTMENT COMPANY ACT

38. - Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each of the preceding allegations as though fully set
forth herein. . ' ” h . , :
39, Under Section 36(a) of the ICA, all of the Defendants are deémed to have a fiduciary

duty to the Plaintiffs and all members of the Class.
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40. On infonnation and belief, all Defendants breached their fiduciary duty arising ur der
Section 36(a) of the‘ ICA.by failing to submit Proof of Claim forms or to otherwise participa;e in
settled securities class aétions and tﬁereby recover money rightfully belonging to the Fund inve;:tors
and which would have been iMediate]y allocated to investors through the recalculation of the‘_;Net
Asset Value. |

41, Plaintiffs and members of the Class have been injured as a direct, proximate,:}and
foreseeable result of such breach on the part of the Defendants and have suffered substajz;tial

damages.

COUNT IV
VIOLATION OF SECTION 36(b) OF THE INVESTMENT COMPANY ACT
(AGAINST ADVISOR DEFENDANTS AND PARENT COMPANY DEFENDANT)

42, Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each of the preceding allegations as though ﬁlllg/ set
forth herein.
43, Under Section 36(b) of the ICA, the Advisor Defendants, the Parent Comﬁany

Defendant, and other attiliates of the Advisor Defendants are deemed to have a fiduciary duty}vuh
respect to the receipt' of compensation for services, or of payments of a material nature, paid b}" the
: i
Fund and Fund investors. : , J
44, The Adfzisof Defendants, the Parent Compény, and other affiliates, upon inform%tion
and belicf, breached their fiduciary duty arising under Section 36(b) of the ICA by failing to su{amit
Proof of Claim forms or to otherwise participate in settled securities clasS actions and théireby

recover money rightfully belonging to the Fund investors and which would have been immediately

allocated to the individual investors through the recalculation of the NAV,
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4s. Plaintiffs and members of the Class have been injured as a direct, proximate, gmd
foreseeable result of such breach on the part of the Defendants and have suffered substan}ia]

damages.

- COUNTV
VIOLATION OF SECTION 47(b) OF THE INVESTMENT COMPANY ACT
(AGAINST ADVISOR DEFENDANTS AND PARENT COMPANY DEFENDANT)

46. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each of the preceding allegations as though fulljﬁset
forth herein. it
47. Pursuant to Section 47(b) of the ICA, 15 U.S.C. 80a-46(b), any contract made in

violation, or performance of which results in“violation, of the ICA is declared unenforceable. .
48. Forreasons alleged herein, thcijAgreemcnts between the Advisor Defendants (andj;the
Parent Company‘and other Affiliates) and the Funds were performed, on information and belieﬁ? in
violation of the Investment Company Act and are therefore unenforceabie. |
49 Under Section 47(b) of the ICA, 15 U.S8.C. 80a-46(b}, the advisory agreements r?xay
be voided, and the Advisor Defendants, the Parént Company Defendant, and other af(iliates are ]ia{}jtalc
to return to the Funds and Fund investors all of the fees and consideration of any kind paid to th:em
during the time period that the violations occurred. ‘
50. Plaintiffs demand a jury tn'all.‘
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand judgment against Defendénts as folldws:
(a) Recognizing, approvirig and ccx‘cifying the Class as specified herein.
(b) Infavor of the Class for comp‘ensatory and punitive damages, forfeiture of all commissiﬁns
and fees paid by the Class, p}us the costs:of this action together with reasonable attorneys fees

(c) For such other and further relief as this Court deems just.
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Dated: Janvary {02005

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

L] s

David Pastor (BBO #391000)
GILMAN AND PASTOR, LLP
Stonehill Corporate Center
999 Broadway, Suite:500
Saugus, MA 01506
(781) 231-7850
(781) 231-7840 (fax)

Randall K. Pulliam
'BARON & BUDD, P.C.
3102 Oak Lawn Ave.
Suite 1100

Dallas, Texas 75219-4281
(214) 521-3605

(214) 520-1181 fax

J.‘Allen Camey
Hank Bates
CAULEY BOWMAN CARNEY & WILLIAMS LLP
11311 Arcade Dr.
Suite 200
Little Rock, Arkansas 72212
- °(501) 312-8500
(501)-312-8505 fax
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